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TRANSCRIPY OF A TAPE RECORDED INTERVIEW
WITH MR, WILLIAM HOWEE, CARRAGANA

Kow ths first question is, why did wu dectde to come to this conntry?
From Englend?
Yﬂa’

Tiwas epprenticed to olectrical work. 1 served my apprenticeship. I liked
my work and I wanted to get out and get wmore experience when By Approntices
ship vas finished and 1 answeved 8n ad from a £irm in Woolich. The Boer
War was on at that time and things were move or less booming there. And

1 took this job and I seemed to get ajong very satisfactovily. 1 was
always 8 etudent of theory and they were up agsinst some problems that
actuslly were being sued by the burrough bscause they couldn'e conzplate
their contracts. And 1 was able, with my little bit of theory to do the
thing for then and saved them s ifttie bit of soney, and they raised oy
wages.,

What would you have been getting thers?

1 shouldn't tell you that. <1 wanted & Journeyman's wages. Improver's
vages were standard at about soven pencs an houry thse's 15¢ an houy, But
he balked at that when he hired me and he satd, “I'11 give you that 1£ 1
£ind your worth 1t. But I'd i4ke to start you st four pence an hour.®

This {5 the same as when apprentices get their first job. 1T Estd, “No."

Bo said, “Vell, I'1l wmake it f£ive pence. Did you ever have suy experience
in a certain line of telephone communication work?® 1 satd "Yes, 1 just
came off that." He gaid, "Well, we're up againet a problem. We're baing
sued, If you can unrsvel this problem we have 1'11 have no tvouble ralsing
your weges. But you can only work there at nights and Saturdays.” Well,

it was easy for me. Be gave me an apprentice to work with me and 1 got
elong good on the job. But thenm the war ewnded. 50,000 men wera discharged
from Woolich Aeseral in one week, Everything wemt f£1at in that ccuntry.
Hobody hirzed any oxtensions in slectrisal work. Building all stopped and

it seemed 4t wae going to spread &ll over that part of England., There was
mgybe 10 men working thers when I was hired. 1 saw them all go and I was
the last, then sy turn came. Y got another job and 1 went to Kensington,
The traveller he lost his job and he tock me o Kensington, Ws got a job
there and the same thing heppemsd thore., There would he maybe 15 pen working
on that firm doing wiring work. But bit by bit it slowed down until there
Was oply tuo or three of usi my turn came. Now I was out of work and T falt
it terribly. I wae 7 weeks out of work. 1 gouldn’t get & job anywhere., 1
dida't complain to my father, but ¥ saw my savings weve going, ny boote were
wotrind out and ! just had encugh to buy my ticket eut te Canada, which
ware booming at that time,

How much did vour ticket cost?
I think it was $50.00.
That would teke you how far?
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To Wionipeg,

b4d you pack up wany goods to take with you ¥

No, 1 dida't have very such. I had brought ny clothes. Y left the fow
lttle things that I had gathered up with my folks, Their home was in
Mommouth, the capital town of the ¢ounty. They locked aftey that. I told
them I would be back pretty soon. But X didn't get bhack,
nomrwubarthemaﬁthebaatmemsedm?

Yas. It was the Corinthia.

Here there lots of pangemgers? Was it crowded?

There vere three parts to the passengers. I was Second Clase. Three parts
of thoge were electricians. It seems that electricians got kit mors than
anybody else, with this unemployment.

Your meals ware provided. You didn't have to bring sny food?

| Yoz, WHa hﬁé a ndea time,

How about on the train? You would be on one of the old colontal--

Ca the colonist train, yes,

Did you have to cook your own meals? And get what you ecould elong the way?
Yoes. That's it,

Hew you di&n;t stay in ¥imnipeg very lomg?

No. I got in to Wimm in the norning and 1 was not wany kours there
before I was hired to go with a man to Miamt,

Did thoy have an employment office there?

No. They were hiring harvesters on the street for diffarent farmers.
How for wes Miamt?

Beventy i les,

You went cut by train?

Yes, |

You spent the fall and winter thora?

Yes. Not with the same man., I worked with this one man through harvest,

but vhen winter et in I got another Job with another farmer and I stayed with
him 311 I left 4n May for Saskatchewan.
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Why did you decide to go to Saskatchewan?

Well, there was an old timer there that bad been up in Saskatchewan,
Ho'd been & teamster in the Retallion. o

Do you remembey his nsme?

Yes. Kruse. There wewe two brotlers, John Kmse and Peta Kruso. 1t was
Pete Kruse that hod been the teameter. le said if ever he wers going to

move, that'c where he would go. Hs said Battleford, oh the lovely country
thera, the beautiful lakes aud rivers. Nell, cheve were four of us that

heard this and we all decided to go together,

You went to Saskatoon in May and you had to walk from Sackatoon to Battleford?
Yes,

You told me that you mads the two trips, to get your baggsge.

Usll, it was really three times we did the walking. The bridge was out at
Saskatoon when ocur trvain axvived. :

Which side did you sr-ive on? The Hest?

Ko, thasouth side of the city. We came up from Regina. The bridge wae oot
and we walked mcross--they were building & mew bridge and we walked ecross--
they were bullding & new bridge and ve walked across on the structure--the
skeleton stiucture. Ye clambered scross or walked gevoss, amd avrived im
Saskatoon proper. There was notkig on the south side, just omre little tin
shack for the gection men to get out of the rain. That's all there wae on
the south side, '

Bothing elgn?

Mothing at all.

and wae there much on the other zide?

Het wuch on the north side. Now we wun into-«

The Barr colenists would have been through & yesr before.

A year before was their eain drive. There vas some coming through that vear,
but none with us, ’

Ho, of couree not. How did you get divections to set off, or how did you
find the tratl.

Well, it was instinct. There waz a wagon trail leading to the northwestward
direction. We didn'*t peed anyone to tell us.

Did you carry a pack or what did yeu do on this trip?
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Well, we had a theory that we eouid eerry snough grub and we could cook
and aeat the varicus stuff we had, By the way, twe of the party, one got
sick in Sasketoon and the other stayod with hime«they were brothers.

S0 there was juet the ome--Jos Hunble. He wes gquitess friend of HeClavty
that was M.P, for that eves, Anyway Joe and 1 started out--we packed our
grub. We met & homasteader coming back and he satd, "I can save you ten
miles.” Well we thought that wae fime, how 41d you say we save lo pilost"
Piell" he satd, “veu eross the viver. When the teagl forike, you take the
vight trail through the Doukhobor viliage and cross the river at the elbow

. on that iem-ﬂ

This would be near the Potrofks bridge now? |

1 don't know whether theve's s bridgs there or not. But it was 30 miles
from Saskstoon. Ha said, "If you take the north trvafil, you will-=g{t%s 10
niles shorter.”? Now, by ths way, the day was hot and we didntt take vaw
much grub. Then somebody told us that we could alwaye get wore grub, theve
was a stopping station every 25 miies, When wa decided on thie change we
never inquired if there was any stopping eveaz on the other side. There
wasnty, _ ‘

Uhat kind of boote did you bhave. Good walking boote?

Yes, good workingman's bmté'.

Yere they stromg boots?

Yes.,

Vhat kind of ciothes were you wearing?

Overalls, I axpect.

So we stopped at the Doukhobor village. They were so good to us, Thay put
s up & nice breakfast. Joe satd to me, “look, we'll eat at the stapping
touns. Lat's give them our grub. They've becn good to us.” %0 we left
then our parcels of grub thinking weld buy our meals every 25 miles. But
therz wae no mea! im sight until we got within 10 miles of Battlaford,

How long did it take you?

Well we made the first house, was Lonsdales that wae 10 ni les from North
Battieford, in three days from Szokatoon. _

So you only iad the one meal at the Doukhobor vil&ge.
Yea.. And we went the vest of the time without anything,
What did you do for drinking water?

¥ell, there wero lots of eloughs,

Hould you boil it, or fust drink $:7?

Weld just melt it down and sip it. |



D.B. When you got to Battleford, what did you dof?

W.H. Well, we stopped at lonsdales, amd I might wention our physical condition,
The mosquitos were veally the worst thing on the trip.

b.,B. That was & new expericnce, L presume.

W.H. We covercd our hesds in paper, but there were masses of them all the way,
but especially the last 10-15 miles which paralleled a long slough but
we'ld been told to wateh for Lonsdsies. That was the first house. Now
this other fellow with me was a lot bigger and gtronger than me, but it
was going harder with him than it was with me. Finally we got dissppointed;

. every ridge wa thought we'd see Lonedales, but there was nothing there but
empty space., Finglly he said, "I'm quitting. I can't goon., 1'm going
to cover my head and hands with newspaper and you can do as you like, but 1
can't go on." "Well,” I gaid "we can't be very far from lonsdales. 1I'l1
go on and the next vidge should show us their place.” BSoc 1 went on, left
poor old Joz iying there and just about gave up. when I got to the ridge,
asbout three or four miles further on I could see the blue amoke coming out.
That was Lonadales.

DB, So what did you do? Did you call to him to cowe on?

W.H, No, he was two miles behind, 1 thought, I can't do anything but go on back
for him and spin & yard that lonsdalss is just the other side of the ridge.
So finally 1 got hiv roused up. He didn't want to come and I said, "Joa,
‘Lonedales is just the other wide of the ridge. Don’t give up, I'm tired
just iike wou are, but we're all right. They*ll look after ug there," He
sald, "If there {sn't, I'1l bresk every bore¢ in your body." uell, didn't
he swear when he saw that 1t wes still 4 miles further, But we wade 1t and
wa got to Mz, Lonzdales when he was wilking his cowe. But I was more in
now than what Joa was, . He said, 'Did you fellows come from somewhere?'

Joo was trying to tell him that we'd come from Saskatoon. He said, "1've
been here so long~-" Well, he kept telking and talking. Finally ny legs
gave way and I was finished, Ami I heard lcnsdale say to Jee, "dhat's the
matter with that fellowl" Joe gaid, "1 guess he's tived.” iLousdale was good,
He took us to the house, his wife made tea and they got us something to eat,
The next morning we did the 10 mile walk to Battleford. B5o that's that.

D.B. Did he charge sou for--

W,H, HNo, ne, Kot a cent---but Joe, finally marrisd his daughter. He got
acquainted with thes and took a homestesd close to thelrss and he married
the daughter. ‘ ' I

D.B. ihat did you do whan you got ro Battleford? Did you file on a'hmestead
iomediately? '

4.H. 1 guess it was Saturday when we got there. No, it was Friday--they close
Saturday and I was on the line walting for an afternoon or sometime to file,
But five o'clock, when they close chopped off when it wes my turn, so I came
back che next day to £ile. 0Oh by the way, the way 1 chose amy place--1 ran
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into twe land guides that had been locating land for a Quaker settlement,
There was this one that they hadn't put anyone on, but they satd ¢ was a

- very choice location and 1€ 1 wanted 1t I could File on 1it,

You filed fmmediately. P14 you g0 out to your homestesd?

Ho, I looked for a job. 1 was breke, but flat. Joe patd my $10,00

entry fee. That's how I had enocugh monay to file on the hopestead, We

had to go back and gat our baggage eand then we separated., The aext journey
I made with s man named Tow Braught. 4an Irish lad, ignorant, no aducation,
btut T lked Tem, Wall, the fiyst job I pot, 1 guess was on the Saskatoon

. Bridge, under Jack Storer.

Yﬁu nean you went back to Saskatoon and worked?

After 1 cam back from Battleford, then 1 looked for work, Apd 1 think I
got that job, and my terms with Jack Stover was that 1f he gave me that job,
could he deduet so much of my wages for himself.

Well! Beumds like a nice arvangement,

That was the ethics in those days. And I guess he did it with the regt of
them. Half of them were haif-breeds. Nice followa, We got along. Hell

I didn't like that £inaneial arrangament and on top of that, I didm't get
"o money., He'd aluays have an excuse why he didn't have my woney, So
that's thoreason that I quit that Job. : :

Bid you ever get it?

Va8, in bite and piecesn, evaatually., MNind you, they say that he had so
zany debts that when the govermment would send the pay to disburse, they
said the fiwat thing he'd do was 0 go and pay his dabts., '

What fob did wou get after thas?

Then I worked-+1 was the cookie on e grading outfit at the Thunderchild
Resarve. That;s where I saw the Indian pow-wow, 1 stayed thexe until

the long hours played out one of my legs. I was first yp in the zoTNing.~
ebout 4100 a.;m., and thers would be tramnsionts coming along, and $t would
be maybe 11:00 p.m. before we'd be done, There was vary litevle eit down
a1l that time--washing dishes and zooking and catering, Finally one of uy
legs swelled up and 1 quit the job and went in to Battleford. It was about
& week before my foot was better and I ecould walk, :

Do you remember what pay you got as a cookie?

Hsll, the vegulat pay was $30 a month., Your food and & tent vae found for
you to sleep in. You had your own blanket and clothes and thee,

How this wonld be what, the fall of 19059
1904, "

Now after you finished with the cockie job, what did vou do then?
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1 think I did & Metle work for Bob Latimer, putting up hay at bis ranch
in the Ssgle Hills and then he pot ms the work in ¥iseing's tivery barn.
1 stayed there till late in the fall, '
This would be looking afrer the horses?

Yes, It was long hours, ZHarly in the morning ¥ had to have the baen ali

-cleaned up, the horses watered and vesdy to take out. e boarded at the

hotel. 1 say, I mean juet me. The man-killer of it all wag the punp,
There was an old pump that would hold back the water and it was a wan
killerp i ) ’ ' I

New you hadn't as yet been out to your homestead?
Ne, 1 band‘t besn in it at ail.
Hd you go out to it thar £fell?

Ho, I didn't zo cut thet £all, Y ran into, I started work £inishing

the pmding at the bridge approaches. The pay was s little bit better.
Anyway 1 ran into a young follow, about 20 years old who had come from
eouthern Alberta. There was quite g story behind him, £allow by the name
of B111 Haymes, I got along with him and liked him, Anyway he told me that
ke ueed to go trapping in the winter and thers vas good money and when hetd
come frow southern Alberta he'd walked the distance amd he'd seen a black
fox and at that tiwe black fomxes were werth roney, abeut: three or four
hundred dolisre., He satd "1'¢ ke te go out thereg but I lost all my tees
off wy one foot, froze thew last winter and I have no soeny and whethey 1
ean neke a grub stake this winter T den't know.™ Well, I Yiked the £allow
and 1 asked what 1 could do, if 1 ecould go im with him, 2nd he said 4t was
#1! vight. I bought an Indian pony sfterwards. ' So I west in with him up
in the hills, you know where Manttou lake is. You Roow there's a bunch of
hilla gbout eix milos thie side, or three or four nilss tbis eide, and we
camped there and wa tyappet, . ' ,

You hadn*t dome any trapping before this had you?

No, I didn't krow snything shout it.
He taught yeu how to set trapa?

He did all the catehtng, I don't think 1 caught anything ot all, Yo, we
shared the money, ue bought things in comaon. WYe had a itttle temt. And
£inally-- : '

Did you cateh much that winter? Did you get your black fou?

Ho. We got a cress Fox. He got it, Then grub started showing signg that
it wasn't going to last the two of ng. He said, "Look, you don't koow much
about trapping. I like being alome better, 1'11 give you half the furs,

which you're entitled to and I suggest that you leave me.” It was JO el les
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to Battleford, He said "1'11 look you up when I pet through, 1'11 be
coming in towards Sprimg.” So I left him., T never gaw him again, But
1 did heavdadbout hin. When I landed in Battleford, I went to the Queen’s

-Hotel; T forget the circumstances now. But & wan came to me and he seid,

"fou've just in from the West, eh?™ 1 safd "Yes." He said, "There's a
rancher 1a here, he's inguiring what the conditions are in the hills, west
of Battleford, if the snow is deep. He wants to gat through on horsaback
to southern Alberta." Well, I said, I'd tell him. So I went to him and

I told bim, "You can follow my track, if there's no storm. 1¢11 take you
to cur camp and there you'll €ind a man named Bill Haymes and he'll put you
up. "Bill Haymes?" he said, "What's he 1ike? I described him, frozen
foot and all, Then he said, "Did he ever teil you why he laft his
brother'z home last £all without letting anybody kaow?” Well I told him
the story that Bill had told me. He'd been away from home several yvears
and then he was deteymined he'd go back where his brother lived, Ho 1ived
down in Montana, herding and ranching and working out, gambling too, I
guess, quite a bit., He was quite 8 gambler. He cama to hie brother's
place. His brother made bim welcome and they put him up, gave him a room
and the brother seid, “VYou stay with me uatil we get & good job for you.
This was at Sounding Lake, but he didn't sleep good, and he went to bed
early end then he heard a visitor come, a lady visitor and she wae taiking
to his brother's wife. Amd the brotherts wife said "Our wvasteful bhrother
has turned up and I guess we'll have to keap him.' Well, that wouldn’t suit
Bi1l Haymes., So he waited til} they ware 81l asleep and thenm he hit the
trail--200 miles from there to Battleford, So 1 told Walker, that's the
name of this rancher, I teld him thet 1%d always been sorry for Bill becguse
1 shouldn't have told him that. The poor brother's wife getting the blame,
This Bill Haymes was very independent-minded, He insisted that I take half
the furs, although 1'd caught nothing by myself,

You had ridden a pony back, did you?

Ch, we tock a pony. 1 had a little pony and towards the last he got away
on us, 1 hunted and bunted for a long while, but I never found him. My
own little bits of effects that I had and blankets and furs.-

Where would you sell the furs?

To a fur dealer or Hdson Bay Company, Every individual there was out to
steal your furs. There was the Favmer, and the storekecpers. They were ail
tunting me ap, I had quite a nice little pack of 300 muekvate and the foxes, -
a few badgers, ome or twe other thigs. Oh, they wanted my furs. They'd

pay better than anybody alse, but the market price had gone so low, zeally,
I'd hotter sell them quick or I weuldn't he sble to sell the furgs., They
thought I was ever so green, but I finally did. 1 sold them to a storekeaper
for a little bit more than the others offered. They knew how to work on men
coming 4in with furs,

Yhet time of the yeer was this?

I got back there im Febyuary. Then I had a stroke of luck. I was walking
along the street and 1 ran into e little boy, the gon of one of those men
that T had worked with on the Saskatoen trail. S$id, hig name was, send he
egened 20 overjoved to see me. He sasid, "Will you come down to Ded's place.
Dad has taken on the job of delivering water in Battleford and he's hating it
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pretty havd. Promize you'll come down. 1'1ll take you down if youtil come."
Well, 1 dort know many in Battleford, but that was the warmest veleome I
ever had anywhere, from this little boy, He said, "Ded will want you to
gtay with us." And sctually he did. As soon as I told him thar I had
nothing, nc job or anything, he says, "Won't you stay with ue. You cam
help ma a 1ittle bit with the work. 1 sure would be glad if you would stgy
with us. So I did. Ve didn't have much else to pat but porvidge. We

weee all yight. I helped him, I had a few etrokas of luck ecome my way.
There was & man that owed me gome woney. FPoor old Jack was cut of hay and
his cutfit was bedly mortgaged to the man that he had bought it from. The
men was going to foreclose and Jack couldn’t raise the meney to buy hay.

1 got enough hay, a great big ton and & half load from e man that owed we

a fow dollaras and that saved Jack'e business. So be didn't hurt by haviag
we and 1 stayed theve till I got 4 job on the C.H.R, bridge west of
sattleford, 1 steyed there until the river was bresking up and then I
thought 1 would like to go and see my homestead, build a shack, which I
did, Then I came back-~~ : _ '

How did you go out to your homestead? Did you have & horse amd wagon?

Ho, 1 can't remember how I got out theve. Oh, I ran into a fellow frem
Swathmors and went with hinm. His nsme was Tom 5lack and he said “Come
atong with me. Ridge in the wagon." He took we with hie 10 miles and 1
walked the rest of the way.

Did you bave any difficulties in fisding your quazter?

Mo, 1 followed the stakes. It was all stoked out., The survayors had left
it easy to follow.

what kind of a shack did you build?
I built & sod shack.
How did you got the soda?

The settlers asbout three or four wiles away came down and plowed me the
sods and brought me some string and roof poles, and & few more poles to do
the framework with.

How lovg did 1t take you to put up the shack?

About a week, Then 1 was staying, while I was buildiag with a fellow that

1 had worked with om that last job on the C.N.R., bridgs. BHiz name was
Harvey Wismer. 1 stayed with Harvey. He was alone until ¥ went back. Then
1 thought I could get back on my job for the wintew, but thay wers £1lled
up and they referrad me to the welluan®s fob in tie laying.

I'm interested im how thiz job was carried cut. They bought the ties by
rail,

Yes. There was o material tzein that came up morming amd after dinner.

Did they have a boom for loading the ties? How d41d they losd the ties
on your wagon?
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You had racks wade out of feur ties, four slanting tiee aed two hed tias, .
They were well designed and they fitted onto your heavy whee!l wagons and
you drove alongside the car where they might be loading four or five cars
at the same time. There would be a logder in cach of the cafs, A wan with

. & pickaro., DMd you ever sec a pichare? It's ghout the sige of an axe

handle with a hook on the end, They can handle tfos wall with that,

“ell they assisted you. They threw out the one end and you took that,
They threw over the other and and you guided the tie onte its place. It
was dangevous, for sometimes a fallow got hurt. I got nearly hurt a couple
of times myself one time, T tdd & runavay ona time beoawse 1 slipped and
£ell on the tesm's back, They bolted with ms caught in the doubletrees
about half a mile, :

How did you unload them?

You stood on the front of your wagon and the helpers on the grade under
the direction of the straw boss named Mike, & Swede. He woyuld tell you
where to dump them and thon thie one man would Jumpy en the hind end of your
wagon and you would take the fromt end and thraw them over bodily, That
left tham at the sids of the grade, Then there were nen that followad and
put them crosswise and then the piomeer, which was attached to the trail
would keep moving up and unloading the steel cable on top of the pulley
wheals each side of the flat cars wheve the steel ratls were, They were
unlogded on the rolless and they were pulled along uatil«+T think there
were 30 men on each side--would manhandla those ralls, lay them down tnto
place and therg thoy ware spilked and gusged for width and then each pair of

eatlw was latd down god the piomear and the train would move up that distance.

e made a8 much as rdlas in a day.

Of course all the grading had to be done ghesd,
Yag,

Grading would be a !:'arﬁ Job 1 presune.

Scme of 1t cyossed the swamps as much as two or three miles, That was all
wheelbarrow work--all done by hand,

Ne scoopse-

Ye1l, whera the land was dry enough to work they used scfg;pers'. Teams and
Berapards  And sthers the £4lla wera heavy, they would use the four-horse
autfits thers, ) _

You would be kept going all day, losding and anloading?

We were roused at 3100 a.m., We had to see to our teams first of all, Then
get breakfast, and by that time tt would be time to barness your team and
hitch on your wagon and then head for where the end of the steel would be,
You would work there will noom. Thea the tiss would be empty amd the £iald
cars would be emptied. The waterisl tranmen would go back 30 or 40 miles
to the material yard to load up another trainload of stuff, That would

. arrive at around 1130 or 2:00, Then y¥ou would work st that un%il it wag

@il unloaded and then you were fras to go home,
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They noved your eamp often?

They vould move camp about every three or four days. It might be efght
or ten milos eqch tise.

I imagine that camping conditions would be pretty pﬁmitive;

Yoz, They -haé & couple of fairly largpe tents for our sleeping accommcdation
and one large tent for eating. MNind you, there was arcundas hundred men.
There was 80 teams doing this tie-laying work., The average distance that
you world haul from that car to the grede might be half & mile or it might
be a2 mile, . :

You would probably drive in the ditches,uould you?

No. You didn't drive in the ditches, but you'd find the old grade -'cagps
had left tracks, wagon trails here and there and you could find 8 way.

I£ you didn't find & way, the foreman would.

They'd €ind it for vou?

Yaou, .

You didn't bave to care for the horses or enything?

Peta, the corral boss would bave part of your bale hay put for you, Yeu
would feed your team cats in a beg and the hay in & slice of the bale.

You would water them yourself. The wagons were lined up in 2 circle and
the teams were tied to the wagon wheela inside the civele.

And you stayed with this until vou got from Battleford to Edmohwn?

Yes, Battleford te matm. To the Edeonton fob.

Then you had that very interesting ride back. It's rether ineredible, this
hoxear business, _

‘1 ean't herdly believe it. You haven't got that with you, but maybe your

memory would tell you., I'm not dead surs, but I believe I was right when
I said there was 200 men to twe boxcars, I was quite surs when I wrote the
letter that that's what there wes., Well, spproximately, K

Well, the point is that only half coGld eit down, while the other half had
o stand up. '

Ho & half--ope in four! But when they put am extra car on, they also took
on extra passengers. Then we were able to goarrange 1t thot s half could
sit down and a hatf stand.

Bow cold wee 1t outgide?

Twenty below zere, They said 1t was twenty below when we 1eft Eduonton.
Baldwin, that's the lad that I roowed with; he hdd 2 place at Swathmore--
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“.He  you know whers Swathmore 15?7 His folks afght still be there. Anyway be and
1 shared our tripe. UYe got off together fn Battleford. We thought that
we would aaver regover, we wera go £ar gone.

D.B. Has there any trouble ghout vour Yend?

H.Ha Yes. A little.

D.B. Did anybody try to cancel on you?

W.H.  One man in the middle of the summer put a canceligtion on. ¥ got a letter
from my friends, Wismars to say 1'd detter look after it., I got no other
notice. I nanaged to get down theve-~by the way the construction train
erews all made me dip into my pocket for s dollsr or somathing, or thay'd
throm me off the tvein, There were no passenger tyains. You had to
sweeten them up. Then whan T got to the land offfce they told me, "You
had written to eay that you were geing sut to work, so we hed stopped .
cancellation procedure. You didn't need to have come dowm at all,

DBy - You pot back in December?

Hch' Yesu

D.B,  What did you do then? Did you go cut to the farm?

Hell. T went out to the farm, I went dewn and stayad with Yismer until T £ixed
up the farm & little bit--Tixed up the shack and wade it hsbiceble.

D0.8. Then you went iato rosidence?

H.H,  Thes 1 stayed there that winter.

D.B: DPid you stay thera that sunmer?

HBy,  The nezt syriﬁg I bought a team of oxen amd T staved on the farm.

ﬁ.B. T gatker ozen were---

W.!i.- Wall oxen could live off the land; horses eouldn’t. Yeu had 2o havé oats
for horses. When I BHought that tesm of ogen, my Finances were pretiy low,
He wore all 4o the same bhoat.

- DB,  Did you borrow implemants?

“.E. No, I was abls to huy a walking sﬂn%.

D.B.  So you broke land; dtd you sead any that vesc? _

V.0, HNe. I didn't sead any, 1 had a littie bit of pardern, But I put 8 crop
fn the next zpring. Now conditions weve very different then, They didntt

have the modern grain or varieties of wheat, We had old Manitoba wheate-
Red Fife, It was thres woaks longer fn maturity than these vheats we're
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growing here aow. Wa didn't koow what the frost situstion was, He thought

_land was land, whether 1t was Hanitoba or Saskatchewan, 1 had g wanderful
‘crop, & little over 30 acres, The weed inspseter said that it wes the

best crop in the whoin country that he traveiled. He'd travelled sil
summar. So it was good. But it froga in the milk and it £voge in the
dough and although 1 threshed and got a little out of 1t, it wasn't worth
very much. It didn’t hardly pay to thresh ft, so that was that, There were
$ acres of osts that 1 had that was very good, o

Now actuadly you did some breaking. How did you spent the wintar? Did
you stay with resideacs or batching?

I got a pig that winter. 1 stayed on the homestead. 1 don't know whethor
you ever heard of that very hard winter, There's naver been a winter like
it since, or reaily before. I put that winter in the shack. I used to
walk over to the neighbors a mile or two away, or they might wallk over to
ny place and we'd spend our time together,

Se your first erop was s failurve hecause of frost, Did you menape to put in
a crop the next year?

Yea. I put in a crop the next year and it was a fatrly good cmp Then
we got one very goed crop--a bumper crop. Then we had a& successi®n: of

off-yenrs spain,
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This wag 8 hush gquavter too, was ¢ not?
No,
There wasn't sach bush?
Ne, no bush st ali. All prafrie.
S you didn*t have any diffleulty braaking?
!’ia,ﬂ there was come stenes; guits & fow stones,
But you acquired your patent without any difficulty?

L qualified, but T had put on & mortgage. 9o all did. And =0 I didnic
get & elear patent. 1 never really did get the clear patent.

Then after the war you went back %o Cutknife, did you?

Yes. I bought what you call a purehase horestead--an adjoining gquarter,
The mortgage conpany forced me to sell By owh quarter. That's how 1t was,
1 lost 1%, But Y hed the other quarter and I'd got breaking done on that
and T got the crop in on that one when I cane back. I bought seed and

put 1t in. I had friends that had leoked after ay stock. There'd been an
increase in the hovses and cattle and they'd looked after them just for
having their uee, It gost me mothing and when 1 tock over T had to buy
seed and I put the erep fn. Then ¥ saw (t burn up. 411 tha crops were
burning np, Thev'd come up gix inches and turn yellow. Hind you, {th

ot all the fault of the climate, People didn't know then how to farm ldke
they do today. They know how to congerve moisture today from one ye&ar to the
next,

Then this was wher you decided to come up heea?

Yes. 1 taw the orep burning up and I thought it vaen't going to bring me
anything at all, And ! ssw a mentien in the newspapers abeut opeting thig
for returned seldiers,

And whet did you do? Sell gff your purchace homestend?

Hot then, There was no sale, After the war there wes no sale for land for
some ro « You sse during the war there was a terrifie sglo becayse
every farmer that had & son and he didn't want to go to war, he put him on
the land. Bought a susarter for Bim and he got exampted. ' But the waT was
over aml I tried to see £f T gould sell, bt thers were no buyzre., 1 didn't
get any offers until, oh, in the Depression and a fellow bought &£ and then
he died--he hadn't patd for it, he'd paid soms down, and be died and his
widow teok up the matter with the Doby Adjustment Board and 1 didn's get
very much out of it altogether., 1 think T got 3600 altogether,

Now when you came inte this area, I suppoze there was e ratlway line through
here?

Ch ves.
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Was theve any settlement here at ail?
Thers was & lumber mill at Praivie River, that'e sll.
There wore no farms?
¥e farms,
And 1t was all heavy bush?
Hoat of 1t was hesvy bush like avound Prairiz Biver; but when you got out

into these towunships out here, there have been some £ires and it opened
up cuite & letle bit of {t., Awpd 1t was, well we could eay, 10 or 20%

.bush, something like thet, But there wes no real open 1and,

Here, when you cmme fa heve, you would start by building a log shack 1
supposa,

Yes. T think the first building I built was g little log building to store
grain so that T had cats for wy hoezes. A4nd then T boflt the walis of my
shack and then I went back to Cutheife to pet the rest of my stuff, 1
couldn't get the lumber te put on the voof., The man at Praivie Rivar,

he hadn't got, he was bandling Bumber and he hed got an srranpement mede
with these lumber mills and they would not sell to the settlers, They

had to eell through hir, T denjt Ymow but T couldn't gov the lunber until
it was July or dugust, the foliowing summer befors 1 could get lumber to
finish the roof and things were touch and go in every way. 1 wrote to
Hom; TH been writing her off and on, end I wondered if sha'd ever had a

" notion that ghe'd like to cowe out and wrota the letter and sailed it in

Frairie River, How the matl had been handlad by the iumber camp pecple
there., They had a post offica. But at that time I didet know they were
trangferring the post office to the storekeasper that sterted wp, Bill Long,
Hell, time wemt on and I never got any reply to my letters, and I'd Just
about given up the {dea. Along about £41l, well it was getting on towarde
fall anyway, by Georvge, somebody brought wa out a latter and it was from
Hom, and 1t had been about tuo months petting te her, In the tranefer €yom
the one post office to the other, I guess it woyld get thrown Inic a corner
or something like that and thern eventuslly it got found and put into
eirculation,

And her answer vas in the affirpative?

¥ell now, that was a pretty serious question, but mavbe she'd come if 1

14 thie, that and the other thing and so on., Wall, I met her fn Winnipeg.
Teali, 111 never forget the weoment when T see her eome up the stops at

the C,P.R. subway. Ard we had two or thres wesks in Winnipeg., Wa
had 3 good time thergs. Uhen we landed tn Frairie River the hotel was
full of bunters., I'd zent word to them that 1 was brimping my wife, but
they wouldn't believe me, so they hadn't left a place for me. The place
was choek full of hunters, so the hotelkeeper's wifs took her into hed
with her; and the next dey we ran into g neighhour that was {n @ith a

load of bay and we rode out on hie haymeek, That was Decomber then, I
bought her a fur ceat in Winnipeg so she wouldn't be cold. iumgd Folt hoots,
A dog skin coat,
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Avd yaz brought her to a beautiful houga--g ons-room shaek?
Yeah, rhat's all {t was.
4dnd all the amenities that you eould wish for-~beautiful eoock stove.

He had picked out all the mortar betwean the logs tha night before he left
for town and wher I pot back, well it was etill there.

- I worked sll that nipht veplastering, but I hadn't time to sweep up all the

mortar. 1 bad to rush and get my team ready and get in tc Prairis River
just ir time te eateh the traim. But when I got to Pratrie River, I eaquired
at the C.P.R, and they sald that the boat had been delayed with heavy storms,
se it would be a week late, o thare you ava, 1'd rushed all for nothing.

You could have done the plastering after all, Wwell now on the homestead,
rather the Soldier Settlement Board, yoit ook your land under, did you bave
to clear a lot of tha land?

No. 1 domst think they required it-«
They didn't require ft, bt vo favm it Voite -

Gh, to wake a living? Thay saide~we didn't know anything--ve were so glad

to get out of the war. And thdre were no jobs, at least there wasn't anything
like enough jobs to zo aroumd for fellows gotting discharged. They said,
‘that land £z so easy to clear--tbree cracks with an axe and out wil! come

the biggest troe thet ever graw.' But then there were lots of other things
too,

Was there any big trees?
Yas M
How did you handle it? Did you cut the stumps high?

Well, some were with teame and some worked by bands end the teams in the
barng, the sesnuitos were so bad. Anyhow, you gould pet rid of it. My
first clearing 7 did all by hand. ¥ didn't hnow how to work with 2 team
in clearing land. Eo others that had got better wayg I did iike they did,
But there was no engine outfits at ail.

No. FHow did you hendle £2? When you perfected your technique?

You had a prub hoe and you seraped 2y the divt from the base of tha tree

and exposed the voote and then you eut them off with an axe and let the wind
blow the tree down £ theve was any wind and if there wasn’t you left it alone
end the next wind that come up would blow {t down.--Once it wvas wobbly a bit,

In other words, vou'd cut the roots and then haul the tree ont whola?®
Yeah, and load 1t om the wagon and that wouid make your fire wood or your

building wood or enything you liked. You could tric it down and piia up the
bruch,
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D.B. And there would still be roots in the ground to be picked up and cut?
W.H, Oh yes. 1 clesred throee acres the first susmer, Cleared and broke the
three acres. The nest year was 8o wet I only got about two acres done,
And to show you how much water there was around I atarted to go downe-
they had a store hers then, a Prairie River man had opened a store. 1t
was Tive wiles avay fyom our place, Amd I wae walking down to see if he
bad a pair of high rubbers and 1 met a nefghbor coming back frum the store
and 1 said, "Jim, I don't know vhether to go on or not, ecan you tell me
4f Lav has got any high rubbers?’ He sgid, "EKnee rubbers? Why do ysu
want knee rubbers for?' Well 1 said, ¥I want to got on the land and do
a little bit of clearing.” He said, "You don't want knee rubbers, you want
nack rubbars.®
D.B. HWell, how did you manage to exist all this time...
W.H. _ We grew our own. We pgrew most of our vegetables. We had nilk £rom the cow,
D.B. And I suppose you would il the odd hetfer?
Y.R, Yes.
Mrs. H. Dad never killed any wild animals,
W.H, We had wilk and eggs and chickens and butter aml gerden stuff.
Mrs, H, We made cur own cheese.,
DR, Now this would bs rather novel, Mra, Howse.
Hys, H. Well, it was work.
D.B. Well, you were not accustomed to any of this?
Hrs, H, Ne, but 1 got along as good ae the rest.

D.B. Hobody was better off than anybody else. How did you learn to make butter,
for emample? Wasz he able to tall you?

Mrs. H, Well, 1'd seen butter made before; but I'd mever made bread, 1'd never seen
1% wade,
bD.B. Thie was a great expsriment, was £t?

W, H, One batch of bread she wag making she threw some salt in and then she didn't
remenber whether she put the salt in or not, so she put another lot in.
¥ell vhen it come to be cocked up--1 can't bear salty bresad, I can't eat
salty bread. She stormed at me like she jenerally does. After dinner along
& nedghbox's wife and ehe satd, 1 had to get away from home. You know ! made
a batch of bread today without putting any salt in it,

D.B. “hat did you do here the first year or two for entertaimment? Did you have
any dancaes or thie sort?
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Mrs, H. Well, will you believe me, I'vs been heve all thess years and 1 have
never been to one dance!

bB.B. Hever once?.

W.H, Well, I didn't like taking her to dances. There was things thers I didn't
like., Well, there was driok thers.

D.B. Well, did you play esrde or visit the naighbors?

W.E. Oh, theve were lots of visitors,

W.H. There vere & lot of bachelore here, and they knew they could alvays gat
& good meal at our place. HNoliody every went hungry.

0.B. They beat a path to your door then?
H.Ha  Well, they kitew whers to come,
Mrs. H. Let me tell you & fanny story. Yeu know in Ingland they make what they

¢all Rely Poly, & reisin pudding. And they had a sawing bee--there ware
7 men sltogether--and so, you know, 1 thought whatever can I make for dessert
causa we hadd't & lot. 1'd make roly poly duff, So I made this, It
wald he about that lomg, and sbout thet big around. You xolled it up with
raising. The men had 2 good dinner and then I put this pudding down.
You know one man looked at the other, they a1l looked around to each othar and th
they laughed, Well, I couldn't think what wae funny until Bromhead satd,
“You know, Mre. Howee, I haven't seen a roly poly pudding in years.”™ Ok,
¥ felt awful shy about that, you know, I don't believe I evaer made another
one.

W.H, No, she didn't. She put fn plenty of baking powder and did {t swell up!

D.B. You did build a Red Cross place, did you?

W.H, Yes. vwhst was the date. About two years after the opening in the
settlement?

BB, They could handle sny emevgencies?
H- H. Oh y&s.
DB For example, 4f someone sliced a foot cutting trees?

Wl  Oh yes, first aid end minor atckness. But £ it was anything serious they
would have %o go to by train,

D.B.  Amd was there a weekly service?
Wol. 1 wouldn't say for suve.

D.B. The people in this area were all veterans. Did they work together on any
Projects, helping one another?
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W.Ho . Well, just where wa were they would pull togathei vary, very gocd, Then
in some parts they didn't and in other parte they did. :

b.B, Did you have things like "bees' for building?

W.H.  Yes, sometimes, not always though. Ch, for sawing wood there was always
a bez for that, %o use ome or two men doing that themselves. You'd have
to have at least four or sixz wmen to handle the saw. 4nd, by a stroke of
luck, I traded & small team for an engine and 8 saw &nd & small grain
gtinder. The fellow that bought it on the deal didn't know how to rum it.
He wanted my team. And then the doliars started volliing in. But actually,
that saved wa from going out of the district to get jobs, which most of
them igd to do. Most of them had to leave the district. I was able to
stay howme, ' )

Mrg. Hy.  Well, he would legve Monday morning and come back Priday night, Satarday
- he'd go crushing for peaple.
B.-S.- | Of the voterans that ceme in here, did mostcf them stay? Or did & lot of
¢ o them glve up? :

Wels Mozt of them gave up. There weve 150 files the day of the draw. Now there
was 300 locetions available, but cut of those there was only 150 filed,
1 don't think half of those stayed emough to put in residence. And then
every yeayr there was move dropped ocut. 1926 Bichop Lloyd--he was & young
wan, he hed piloted the Barr colony when old Barr turned haywire--and so
wher he got on in years he got rather swell-hegded. He thought he was
the appointed man by Providence to engineer these settlement schemes, So
he hit on & settienent scheme for this district heve. The Soldfer Settlement
Board--mind you, 1'm giving away imside secret information that 1 shoulda'te.
but the Soldier Settlewent Board very mearly came to being closed out, But that
wouldn*t suit them, they'd lose their jobs. There was collusion between him
ard the Bishop Lloyd or sowe scheme. So the scheme was that they would get
this district here turned into ancther kind of enlavged eettlement. And under
the Soldier's Settlement Board they would retain their organization, And
they manuevered it wery very smartly, We didn't know what we were in for.
But they got us to hold up our hands in favor of it, And the way he rushed
Bishop Lloyd up--his resolution was this: that we the settlers of this
Soldier's Settlement district, we request the govermment to regerve this ares
sclely for British settlers and mot allow foreigners to homestosd hare, but
to reserve and meke available for British-bovn settlers. Wall he pot this
typed out and he read it to us. Well, 1 wasn't one that held up wy hand becanse at
that woment, justwhen the vote was being took 1 heavd Ry team start trying to
break loose from attacks by mosquitoe, so I'd left the eroud, but 1 heard
when I got back what had happened, that they'd--enobugh of them had voted in
favor of thie reselutfon. He didn't bother any more once he got the thing
voted for. He packed up and he was on the train the uext day for Ottawa and
presented this petition to Minister of Imterior My. Lioyd. and Lioyd gave him
the authority to go to Zngland and orgenize this Sritish fanily sottlement
scheme. So the next wave of settlement thRt come out here--at icagt halé
of those people had quit--and they came back to the Boldierts Settlement
Board. Their loans werea't paid and they saw a chance to resell these lands
through another loan to these British settlers., And that kept up the
orgenization of the Soldier's Settlsment Beard. Out they cape, out heve--
‘about 60 or 70 British families, and very few of them wers any good at all,
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The arrangement was that there was about 300 posagible locations and tha
Soldierts Settlement Board had surbeyors and guides that looked the ecountry
over and then it wae to be opened for entry Dominion Day wae July 1, but
thet came on a Susday so they brought down the Soldierts Bettlement clerks
to Praivie River so that you could file on the land there. In orxder that
there wouldn't be any vush on that, they spent about a couple of hourg
saking & lottery out of it. You could put your name on a plece of paper
and the location that you wished to £Eile on and put 4t into a chumm.
Anybody could turn that churn all he ithed. Bue they gave that honor of
picking out the papevs in their turns to an old forentry official named
Shand, Shand Cresk is called after him, Well, that's pretty well all there
fs to 4t. The night before all the offictals had come down Erom Frince
Albert and they'd set up thair desks and books and papars and when your
turn cams and you were ready to €£ile, you walked from one to another and
signed the different papers that they had in front of thom. Well, you
eculd puf &5 many choices as vou liked, in caase the first one was gona,.

1 think that was the procedure. It =8y not bave been exactly like that.
Sut there uas only ens of thoie when my tum came at the end of the draw,
s0 1 £filed mine. I hadn't seen another place that T liked and so I went to
the man and turned my hesd away and said, there, that's goes. And that
happenad to be the ome I filed on., I took the sunbar of that., 1t was

opan and I took the nuuber of that and filed on it. Really you couldntt
tell one place from anmother. You could climd to the top of a tree and just
get a very faint idza of what a place must be 1ike gnd that's all., %o, ft
wae just a gamble. But only 150 files cut of the 500 poasidle lecations.



Mrs,

¥.H.

D.B.

D.slo '

doH,

DB,

WeH,
B.B,
W.H,

D.B.

q4.8,

20 --

- They wers recruited from all the indescribsble elements there. Anything

at gll. Their passagas were paid amd they were brought out here and given
a loan and g tean of mules, :

And they d1dn*t stay either?
The best &id. ?here are gome very good oLes,
And then when was the next trip. When dg thay come in?

Well, finally outsiders came in--Ukrainigne most of thewm, fny land that was
openad was f£iled on--and they wers more adeptable, The old Bishap he stirred
them up, he called them the scum of the esrth, that was his term, and it was
awful and he 8afd that they wanted to keep thiz for the fine British stock.
We weve all just sick when he talked sbout this., And I think the Ukrainians
cortributed @ very good deal to making this country as gocd as it was. It
woliild do you good now to drive cut. 1t's g nice country, Good gravel roads
and people pay thetr tawes and they work hard., Itfs a eradit, really it is.

How did you make out with the Soldiers Sattlement Board? A lot of people
hed defftculity, I gathoxw.

1 had wine,
They lcaned you money, was that §¢7?
Yas. |

Thic was & mortgage agesinst the quarter. You had what a guarter or a half-
section?

We never sold & dollerts werth, They regerved another BO acres alonpside that
you could buy it from them., Then, within the vear after we cama in they
wanted to collect. Our peyments were due. Well I satd, 'I have nothing,

mo crop.t ‘'That doessn't satter' they ssid, 'that's vour affstrs. I¢'s due

~ and you'va pgot to pay 1ti The ggueeze was on right thon, But theyddidn'e

do anything about putting people off unti! the depression hit., And when the
depression his, and vheat wag down te twenty or twenty-£ive cants hera,
Anybody that had any grain then, them he pot tha squeeze, ihat happaned to
me, he ¢ome along and satd, “How much wheat have you threghed?™ I gaid, "1
throshed 1200 bushels. €ne grade No, 2 Northarn.” *Well, he said, “will
you sign here that the firet payment will e made to the Scldier's Sattlement
Board?' I gaid, "No. My first payment is to provide for By Tamilyl” The
Superintendent was a member of our own Battery in Franee, he sald, "Well,
leck Bi1l, this ie sericus. Don't try to fool now, thiz i3 serious. I know
it,and even {f you'vre met going to do it, you'd better sign 1t." I gaid,
"ot en your ife. That grain, first of all, reprosents a livisg for our
femily, for the children.” Fe went and talked to Mom and tried to got her
te persuade hor to get me to sign. But they would have teok ail that grain.
1 was in arrears a half a payment and then there was taxas. It woul have
took it all, All thera was to make that payment, So I said mo. So they
put 2 selzufe on and notified me that I could be put off in two woeks notice,
1 was not allowed to sell anything, without thair consciit. The wonay had to

‘be paid to them. Not a lcad of hay or a bushel.of grain or anything. Finaliy
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1 got the HMFP, Maleoln Helean, to take it on to Pariiament, And they didn't
let 1t go very far there. But they permitted we, provided I paid my taxss,
they would give me another season to make my payments ox gcmething liks
that. That wes the places they were after, Places whare they were fairly
well improved & iittle. Thosa that hed done nothing and never peid then
anything, they did worry him, not one bit.

i suppose the other would be a hopeless situation, They eouldn't get any!:ﬁing
from him.

Veli, that's 12, They wouldn't gain anything at all. But 1'11 tell you
what was behind it, It wasn't the Soldier's Sottlement Boa « I can't
blawe them for wanting to perpetuste theiy Jobs, But®Ewas the old financial
systen, R, B. Bemnett represented the old gold standard. HBe said, "Cenada
must pay her debte in the terme of the contraet” which was gold, They
would have had a revolution tn Caneda wery soon if they'd had.

But you were eventually able to ¢lear off thew--

Oh yeah., If they would have given people a decent chance thay wouldn't have
had any trouble eollecting., s they made we sell all that for faxes at
«20% & bushel, some at 18¢ g bushel. And 1f they'd left me glone, in the
8pring that wheat went up to ,75¢ o bushel. But it wasn't their payment
they wanted, They wanted to 8at & bunch of fairly well improved places,

Yéu're convinced of that?

©h yesh, It looked the natural thing to do, They wers a eallus lot. ©h
they were. When I made a trip up to Prince Albert and 1 saw the Supervisor
and I said, 'You know {t'g harsh treatment.” 'Wall" he said “you're behind
with your payments.,” 1 said, "I'm bohind one<half a paynent." He said,
"dell, you should know thoge things when you sign your contract! Youtil

have to take a loan," Ob, be lectured me and 1 cailde’t angwer him back. Ang
then there was other things. Like I had my figures--what was the grain worth
and how mach I owed, 1 owed, at that time--1'¢q owed money for fuel, to zun
that sepavator, I owed wages for some of the follows that worked on it, and
a szall store bil! of $20 or §30, And these things were just ae wuch in need
of paying as the Soldier's Settlement bill,

1 suppose you had to make most of the clothing [ divected at Mrs. Howsa],

Ch yes, out of flour bags.

They had the power of issuing currency. Ue'd gone through enough alt ready

in France there. Fellows had ‘gone through rished theiy lives, put in three
years of hardship in the army, ¥ar and then treat us that vay. Why they
couldn't have treated us worse if we'd been slaves! They'd had to have fed a8,
What were the educational opportunities in thoge days for youtr chi ldren?

Well, of course the firat school was the amalgamation of two districes. Blockeley

and Greenview -, They built a scheo! on the line botwesn the two and they got
a father of 5 settler to come in here to got ag teacher.
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Now this is what & ona-roomed scheol? Taught up te what grade?

Yes.

dell, there waren‘t-very high gradeg at that time.

#hat happened when your children were ready for high schonl?

Then they bullt other schools ia the distxyist,

#Well, Jimsy never got & chanmce in highschool.

He took his grade nine.

Ellen took.he:.:s by correspondence, exeept her Grade 12. We sent her to
Kelfort for grade 12. Amd she had to work., Fhe feok care of two little
pivls, part payment for her board. That's how she took her grade 12.

It was $15 or 318 a wonth for her board and whatever elge it cost you see,
wae for locking after these little mirls.
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My first trip out for the birth of our first child, Well, we left bome at
5:0C in the worning and Prairie Rivey was 16 miles, And it took from 9:100 a.m.
to 200 p.m. to get there, But on the trip out the buggy pole broke, the
racds were rough, the hovses wera up to their stomachs nearly in sud and
water. Nearly all the way. When it got too rough for wme, ! had o walk, And
! walked off the trail and tread £rom log to log to keop out of the wataer
too, fLvery now and agein he'd etop and he'd call, “Are you all right 7%

I guess maybe I was erying 8 littls, 4ind I'd 68y, "Oh yes, keep a-going."
Hell, when the bugpy pole broke, I had to sit {n the heavy bugh, a couple

of hours I expect. There wes nobody built on that rosd for mgny miles back.
e van back and got amother buggy pole and bad to carry that all the way,
Then we proceded to Prairie River., It was raining hard all the time. Of
course 1'd never been stranded in the busk like that Yefore. He was alvays
with me wberever we went, 4And I imagined basrs and everything else, And I
could hear cat ecells of all descriptions through the bush. I didn't kaow
what they were--gnimals of some kind, e got to Praivie River., I waen't
£it to be gseen. 1'd gome out dressed to travel up to the hospital, 4nd I
had ©o go to Primee albert by train from Peairie River. The lady at the
hotel belped clean my clothes a little bit. I am telling vou, ¥ was in a
muddie. I'm telling you they were hard times, those sort of things that
gomen have to go through., That wes in Koveaber, Ho, T went out in Cetober,
becanse there was no hospital ready here. %o I had to 20 out 8 month before,
which was better for me anyhow, OF eourse, I was ali alone 18 Prince Albert.
1 didn't know & soul. Then I lost the baby, che only ldved 48 hours. So
that wae & poor trip. But there was wany more iike it. Mra. Cibson was
sinilar. She lost her baby oo, e had to put up with & lot of things

here when we first came. Nobody knew very much, 5o, one woman would go and
help arother woman,

I suppose thore would be many babies born hers without doctors.

Certeinly. They couldn'’t leave. %o didn't have much woney aither, but 1

just menaged to get to Prince 4lhert and pay our way. But vhen ¥ pame back
from Prinee A'bert, I don't think we had a niekle left. Bul I paid my doctor's
bills right up., HMaybe I shopldn't bave done, but I did.

Were there any practical murses arcund or midwives?

%ell, there weve & few arous?, but they didn't want to with first babieg, They
dido't mind after that., and then, of course, in time there wae the Red Cross
came in and then we were O.K. But I had thvee babies in Prines Albert. The
first one I loat; I had twe others there. Then after that, I took a chance

end stayed in. You couldn't find people to look after your familfes. So that
¥ou just bed to do the best you could, But 1 was lucky.

Now, you wonld have great difficulty, I presune, elothing your children.
Would shoss be a big problem?

Well, we alweye wanaged somchow. 1 naver saw ny kide vagped,



D.B, They never went barefoot?

Mrs, B, Oh they woald 4f the suomer was nice and hot you know, Thoy had shoes
they could have put on.

D.B, m rg% sQable to provide these esgentisls? And the boys, I would presume, wore

Mre., H. Oh yes, and the girls too, lots of times, Flour bag dresses, I remember
mahking Dorothy one 40 a horry., 4And I told her that 1 bade't washed the beg
and I thought 1%d got Metherts Flour on the inside and when I put 1t onm her,
she got Mother‘s Flour down the back, Seo sheoouldn't wasy if, Oh, we hed
lots of incidents that were really amusing afterwards toe think back on,

B.8. But not 80 amueing at the time?
Mrs., B. COh noo
D.B, You must have put in a pratety leng day,

HMrs., H, Hell, I don't knew. My kide had 2o go %o bed &t 7:00, Like they are today.
Stay up until Mothar and Fathar go, 4t seven o'tlock we all had to go to
bad. Thare was no peace for anvbody unless you did.

bD.B. Yhat time would you rise usualtiy?

HMrs. H, ©h, in the apring and suzmer arvound 5300 or $3100. But we naver staved up
late. We'd put in & full deys work and we'd be glad to go to bed, too,
but not 7:00 when the kids went,

D.B. Whan did you first get & radio?

Hrs. H, Hr, Bowes built the first vadio that was ever in this district, They ware
little peamut sets. Teanut tubes, you know., 4And he sold them up and down
the iine, He didn't hardly charge anything for his work making them, There
was no oanufiactured sete then, And I don't know how he msnaged to do 1% but
he did. )

0.3, Ware they crystal sets?
Mys, H. Yeg,

Yo He Nor. Single tubas regenerated. Just & efngle tube and then I put on a first
stege audfo and then If they warted it they could have a first stage audio
&nd & loudspeaker,

Mrs, H. Had you desigmed these entiraly yourself?

W.H, Well, when I wae working in electrical work, Harconi and Hertz and these
- plonears ware working, 1 was interested ip it. I knew and underztood the
theory and we did experiment {n our workehop 8e apprentices. S0 I knew g
tittie of the theory. But ae coon as the tubes were availasble, well that mede
them femsikic, The €ivet one I built 1 got mothing at all, I could get all
kinds of ships at sea on it, but I couldn't bring it down to the brosdcast
wave length, for scme resson. Then all at once 1 gof a4 new circuit and 1
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1 wvorked all day on that and 1 hooked it up at night ami everything was

rogring anrd susie! Monm had gone to bed, end I egliled to her and she come down
and realiy, the music was beautriful., And she started ¢o erv. She emid,

1 haven't heard music eince I left England, 1dke that,

1% was just as if you could hear the angels singing. You dida't know vhere
the music was coming from. And it was so beautifull

Just head sste, you know.

Then he feotched us down another time and by the time we pot down there,

there was nothing. It had pone, We had that sort of thimg. Even the cat
didn't dare breathe when he was trying. If yould dave to make & nofse, you'd
spoil everything, you had to stay psrfectly still and guiet, 8o I used to go
to Ma

2id he conttme this typs of expertwmantation?

#ell, the next year the . manufactuved sets came out-they could sell you &
set ag chesp as I could buy all the parts. _

But you seid e lot up and down the lime.

At Prajrie River they bought four sets. . I made sbout $10 on each one that
1 sold them aveund §36.00.

Then I ad ancther venture--telepbones. 1 saw an add for used telephone
bomes for sgle. So 1 sent down ard I got a couple and heoked up with the
next door neighbor and they worked fine. So 1 advertised it around and
everybody thought {t was gine, We used barbed wire fences until we had

22 sets of telephones, It was overburdenmed, There were so zany sets on
the line thet it was 2 bother for everybody. But you ecquldn't refuse one
at all.  Then, I got them interested up east, and they got a bunch of sets
end they organized ¢t a little B4t better and fimely they veplaced 4t with
iittle better boxes and final'y they got that going still today.

Yes, the telephone conpany hae taken over and put in proper ones.
But ours fizaled out, There wae so many on it,

«es.80 1 told young Bill there, and he took the evews epgs ocut and put

chickens eggs {n and in good times crows hatched cut of the hickens egss and

he brought them howe and made pets out of them. They were so loaded with

lica belonging to the crows that they imjured their heade and only ome survivaed
cut of the four. Arnd thie one becams such 4 good pet in the home that we give
bin 2 asoe--Alepander, and you know everv day at dinmer it was comical--ag soon
ag 1'd had my dinner little dlexander would get om my shoulder and put hiss
iittle head next to my neck and go te sleep, But eventually he got lost, They
never teld we until this last year what happensd te him.
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